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1. Name

FHR-8-300 (11-78)

historic - James Mitchell Rogers House

and/or common Rogers House

2. Location

street & number 102 S, Cherry Street ____ not for publication
city, town Winston-Salem ____vicinity of congressional district 5th
state North Carolina code county Forsyth code
] - B

3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
____ district __ public x occupied __ agriculture —___ museum
_X puilding(s) _* private —_ unoccupied X commercial - park
—___structure- ____ both - work in progress __ educational __ private residence
— site Public Acquisition Accessible — entertainment —— religious
__ object ____in process _X vyes: restricted ____government —_ scientific

— being considered —— yes: unrestricted ___industrial ___ transportation

N/A ___no —___ military . ___ other: Law offices

4. Owner of Property

name 1885 Rogers House Partnership (attention Wm. T. Graham)

street & number 102 S. Cherry Street

city, town Winston-Salem —___vicinity of state North Carclina 27101

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, eic. Office of the Register of Deeds

street & number Forsyth County Hall of  Justice

&

city, town Winston-Salem state North Carolina
6. Representation in Existing Surveys:
From Frontier to Factory: An Architectural
title History of Forsyth County has this property been determined elegible? __ ves X no
date 1981 X federal X _state _X county _ZX_local

depository for survey records N.C. Division of Archives and History

clty, town Raleigh state North Carolina




7. Description

Condition Check one Check one

% excellent ___deteriorated ___ unaltered _X original site
___ good — ruins _X_aliered —__moved  date
— tair —__ unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

Between 1883 and 1885 the Winston-Salem construction firm of Miller Brothers
(J. S. and Gideon L.) built a fanciful late Victorian house for James Mitchell Rogers
on the southwest corner of ‘S. Cherry and W. First Streets. An architect is not known
to have been associated with the creation of the house. In its early years the Rogers
House was one of a number of impressive dwellings which lined Cherry Street--a princ-
ipal late-nineteenth century residential thoroughfare--and nearby avenues., Now it
remains as one of the few survivors of the late nineteenth century ‘Pericd ‘in this area
of town, retaining its prominent location on a knoll overlooking the commercial core

of Winston-Salem.

The Rogers House is an excellent example of the etlecticism which wass prevalent
in the architecture of the late Victorian period. The irregular massing and variety
of detailing of this large two-story frame house reflects influences -0f several stylistic
trends popular' acrdss America -during- the sécond hdlf of the ‘nineteenth céntury., Influerce
of the ‘Gothit Revival is seen primarily in 'the steeply pitched gables sheatled ~#in board
and batten siding (a contrast to the weatherboarding which covers the rest of the house),
which boast pointed-arched louvered ventilators, kingposts with sawnwork bargeboards and
other decorative detailing. The projecting hood molds found directly below the gables
also reflects this style. At the same time, the bay windows with paneled dado and frieze,
the segmental-arched windows of the first story with their heavily molded lintels, and-
the combination of projecting and receding planes recall the Italianate style. Then too,
the general irregularity of massing, texture and detailing is suggestive of Queen Anne
influence. The interior is characterized by an asymmetrical arrangement of rooms
around a center _hall,, a heavily detailed stairway, wooden mantels of various designs,
plaster ceiling medallions, and an ornate spindle frieze in one of the, rooms.

The Rogers House has remained amazingly intact through the years, with very few
alterations or addition. In fact, the floor plans shown on both the 1907 Sanborn
Insurance Map (the earliest 'yean:im which this:lecation -is depicted). and -in :the current
property. tax assessment file show that the house has virtually the same configuration
now as then. An inspection-of the house suggests that several modifications, in the
form of porch space being enclosed for bathroom and storage use at the rear of the
house, prbbably ocecurred around the turn of the century and then later, around mid-
century. After the house was purchased in 1979 by the 1885 Rogers House Partnership,
it was renovated for use as law offices. Because the house had been generally well-
maintained through the years, and because -the new owners wanted to retain its arch-
itectural integrity, few real changes were made beyond, these which modified earlier
alterations. Changes which did occur in 1979 include the follow1ng
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1) The front porch was glass-enclosed to create a waiting room/reception area.

2) The room directly behind the porch and to the left of the center hall down-
stairs was divided by a partition into two offices along with the creation
of two small storage areas. While the fireplace was enclosed by partitions,

it was left intact behind the enclosure with the exception of the mantel
which was removed for use upstairs.

3) In the library/conference room downstairs in the left rear of the house,
a door leading to what had been an added bath (now converted to storage
space) was enclosed, though not removed,

4) At the rear of the house between the library/conference room and the
kitchen/lounge, where a ''rabbit warren" of rooms had been created earlier
from porch space, the present owners removed various partitions and doors
to create a more open space for secretarial work space.

5) Behind the south office upstairs, an area which had earlier been converted
to a half bath and closet was changed to serve as storage space only.

Plans for the 1979 renovation were prepared by local architect Edwin E. Bouldin Jr.

Sanborn Insurance Maps show that by 1917 two frame outbuildings were located
behind the house on the northwest and southwest corners of the lot. By mid-century,
however, these had been removed and a cinderblock garage stood at the southwest corner.
This structure has recently been remodelled for use as an office, and is now sheathed
with vertical board siding and painted in the same cream and dark green colors as
the Rogers House.



8. Significance peesnie—

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

____ prehistoric _____ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ___ landscape architecture____ religion C—
1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic —_ conservation — law — sclence s
1500-1599 ___ agriculture - economics — literature — sculpturg ———=

___1600-1698 _X_architecture ___ education ___ military ____soctall
1700-1799 ____ art — engineering —— music humanitarian

X 1800-1899 ___ commerce ___ exploration/settiement ____ philosophy ___ theater

— 1900~ — communications — industry - - politics/government ___ transportation

o — invention e wfoe-r - r ., — other (specify)
sPec"lc dates 1883-1885 Builder/Architect M:Lller Brothprq contractors

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph) L - Vst
Built between 1883 and 1885 for prominent local businessman James Mitchell Rogers,
this house is one of the last survivors of the stately homes which once lined Cherry
Street and other neighboring avenues in downtown Winston-Salem. The house, which was
built by the popular construction firm of Miller Brothers, is an excellent example of
the trend toward..eclectjcism in late Victorian architecture, with its clearly stated
influences of the Gothic Revival, Italianate and Queen Anne styles. This remarkably
well-preserved.- gtructure remained the home of Rogers family members for, nearly a
gentury. After mowipg, .to,JWinston-Salem.in 1880, J, Mitchell Rpgqrs,qq}gkly;ﬁstqbllshed

himself ,as an;28s4ute -businessman, an@,sq;vedvnqg_opﬁy.q§ Bre§1dentvoi -the. Bropm, Rogers.
and Company hardware business for over 40 years, but also served as the first president

of the Winston-Salem Chamber of Commerce when this group was formed in 1885. The house
was also the boyhood and retirement home of Dr. Francis M. Rogers, chief chemist for
the Standard 0il Company of Indiana and a pioneer in developing methods for refining

gasoline in quantity from crude oil,

5r

Criteria Assessment:

A. The Rogers House is associated with the-rapld‘growth -and resultlng prosperlty
of Winston~Salem during the late nineteenth century. RRCFI

B. The Rogers House is associated with the lives of James Mitchell Rogers and
his son, Francis Mltchell Rogers. J. Mitchell Rogers was one of the most prominent
bu51nessmen Y late nindtreerth ‘and’ earily - twemtiéth certury::Winston-Salem, serving
for ovet 40 years as pre51dent of Brown, Rogers and Company, a major hardware firm
in the area, and 'ds the first président of the Chamber of Commerce; -organized in 1885,
Rogers played other important roles in the community as well. At First Presbyterian
Church he &etvied for Vears as Ruling Elder, and in both life and death much.of his ..
wealth was channeled into philanthropic efforts. Francis M. Rogers, as chief chemist
of Standard 0il Company of Indiana, worked with a small team of research chemists to
develop a process for cracking heavy oil into gasoline through the use of high temp-
erature and pressure. Thig process’'had a major -impact-on- the American petroleum

industry.

C. The Rogers House is an excellent example of the eclecticism which was pre-
valent in the architecture of the late Victorian period. The irregular massing and
variety of detailing of this large two-story frame house reflects influences of
several stylistic trends popular across America during the second half of the
nineteenth century. Influence of the Gothic Revival is seen primarily in the board
and batten covered gables siding (a contrast to the weatherboarding which covers
the rest of the house), which boast pointed-arched louvered ventilators, king-
posts with sawnwork bargeboards and other decorative detailing. On the other hand
the general irregularity of massing, texture and detailing is suggestive of the

Queen Anne style.
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On November 1, 1882 J. M. Rogers purchased a tract of land on the southwest
corner of Cherry and North (now First) Streets from Harry T. and Emma F. Bahnson.
Shortly thereafter Rogers had a house erected on the site which was owned and
occupied by family members for nearly a century.

On January 3, 1884 the Union Republican reported in its annual list of
buildings erected during the previous year by several contractors that the Miller
Brothers firm had erected a 10-room frame dwelling for J. M. Rogers. The firm
" of Gideon L. and J. S. Miller was a large one employing an average of forty men,
and it was responsible for the erection of many buildings in Winston-Salem during
the 1870s and 1880s, including the Methodist Church, the Farmers' Warehouse, the
Gray (commercial) Block, the J. A. Gray residence and the Brown, Rogers and Co.
Depot Warehouse. The Union Republican report strongly suggests that all or a
majority of the Rogers House was built in 1883, although it may not have been
entirely completed until 1885, as a brick in one of the chimneys bears that date.
Sanborn Maps beginning in 1907 reveal that the house has undergone very few
alterations from its early appearance.

Both James Mitchell and his wife, May Erwin Rogers, were prominent res-
idents of Winston-Salem, active in numerous community affairs. James Mitchell
Rogers was born in Charleston, S. C. in August 1844 and was educated at the
Citadel Academy there. He enlisted in the Confederate Army at age seventeen and
fought until the end of the war. After the war Rogers returned to Charleston
but remained there only a year before moving to Shreveport, La. where he was
involved in the hardware business. While there Rogers married Mary Erwin of
Morganton, N. C., and in 1880 they moved to Winston-Salem where they remained

for the rest of their lives.

Upon arriving in Winston-Salem, Rogers formed a partnership with T. J.
Brown and W. B. Carter which was later incorporated as the Brown-Rogers Hardware
Company, located in a double front store on the corner of Fourth and Main Streets.
Under Rogers' leadership, the firm became one of the most prominent in the area,
marketing a number of products aimed primarily at the needs of the agricultural
community, including farm implements and machinery such as threshers, horse
powers, grain drills, mowers, binders, steam engines, mill supplies, paints,

buggies and carriages.

As a prominent businessman, Rogers was selected as the first president of
the Chamber of Commerce in Winston-Salem when this group was organized in 1885.
In addition Rogers was an active member of First Presbyterian Church, where he
served for years as Ruling Elder and was on various committees of the church.
Both in life and after his death through tife terms of his will, J. M. Rogers was
a philanthropist whose gifts assisted many programs of the Presbyterian Church,
orphanages, hospitals, schools and the YWCA.

-
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Mary Erwin Rogers was also active in the community. When the Twin-City
Hospital Association was formed in 1887, she was elected secretary, and when the
Agsociated Charigies of Winston-Salem was organized in 1905, she served as third
vice-president. Mrs. Rogers played a large role in strangthening the religious
life of the womanhood of First Presbyterian Church.ll '

Mary Erwin Rogers died on March 3, 1914, after which her sister, Mrs. S. E.
. Moran, and her two daughters, Annie and Mary Moran, resided at the Rogers House.l2
Ten years later James Mitchell Rogers died on January 4, 1924,13 Rogers willed
his home to his son Francis M. Rogers, with the stipulation that his sister-in-law,
Sarah E. Moran, be allowed to continue living in the house.

Francis Mitchell Rogers was born on March 22, 1883.15 He attended Salem
Boys School and afterward Guilford College and Davidson College. He received a
Ph.D. degree from Johns Hopkins University and then became associated with
Standard 0il Company of Indiana, where he became chief chemist.l® There, in 1909,
he was part of a small team of researchers who developed a method of increasing
the yield of gasoline from crude oil by a process of cracking the crude oil
through the use of high temperature and high pressure. The success of this
experimentation had far-reaching effects on the American petroleum industry.l7
In 1914 in an effort to produce a medicinal white oil from crude oil, Rogers
served as part of a self-appointed three-man '"poison squad'" to take a dose of
Polarine motor oil to learn about its reaction on the human body. Fortunately
all members of the squad survived, with varying degrees of discomfort, but they
decided to pursue a solution to the problem at hand in a different way.l

After his retirement in 1948, Francis Rogers returned to Winston-Salem to
live in the family home.l9 He died on February 26, 1962.20 By his will, the
family hame was left in the trust of Wachovia Bank and Trust Company with the
provision that Rogers' cousins, Anne R. and Mary R. Moran be allowed to remain
in the, home as long as they, or either of them, should live.21

Marg Moran died on May 18, 1967 and Annie Moran followed her death on March
9, 1979. 2 0On August 7, 1979, as Trustee under the will of Francis M. Rogers,

Wachovia Bank and Trust Co. sold the house to the 1885 Rogers House Partnership,
a group of local lawyers who have sensitively renovated it for use as their law

offices,?23
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FOOTNOTES ==

lDeed Book 18, p. 17, Office of the Register of Deeds, Forsyth County Hall
of Justice, Winston-Salem.

»

2Union Republican (Winston-Salem), January 3, 1884,

3D. P. Robbins, Descriptive Sketch of Winston-Salem, Its Advantages and
Surroundings, Kernersville, Etc. Compiled under the Auspices of the Chamber of
Commerce from a Matter of Fact Standpoint (Winston: Sentinel Job Print, 1888), p. 27.

4Insurance Maps of Winston-Salem, Forsyth County, N. C. Sanborn Map Company,
New York. 1907, 1912, 1917, 1924, 1955.

5Winston—Salem Journal, January 5, 1924,

®1bid.; Robbins, p. 75.

7Union Republican (Winston-Salem), November 19, 1885.

8WinstOn—Salem Journal, January 5, 1924; Mary Callum Wiley and William E.
East, The Book of Remembrance 1862-1962 (Winston-Salem, First Presbyterian Church,
n.d.), p. 46.

9Adg1aide Fries, Stuart Thurman Wright, and J. Edwin Hendricks, Forsyth:
The History of a County on the March, Revised Edition (Chapel Hill: The University
of North Carolina Press, 1976), pp. 201-202; File W-1515, Estates Division,
Clerk of Superior Court in Forsyth County, Hall of Justice, Winston-Salem,
Rogers donated space above his hardware business to the YWCA, but soon thereafter
a fire started in the ceiling of their rooms -- apparently caused by a faulty stove
flue, which created a major conflagration causing damage estimated at between
$35,000-$65,000. (Journal, January 21, 1908),

lOFries, pp. 168, 200.
llWiley and East, p. 46.

12Winston—Salem Journal, March 3, 1914, January 5, 1924.

13Ibid., January 5, 1924.
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File W-1515, Estates Division, Clerk of Superior Court in Forsyth County,
Hall of Justice, Winston=Salem.

15Sarah LeCompte, "Residents of the Rogers' House,'" Unpublished student
report for Introduction to Historic Preservation (History 366), Wake Forest
University, Fall 1979.

16Winston-Salem Journal, February 27, 1962.

17Paul H. Giddens, Standard 0il Company (Indiana): O0il Pioneer of the Middle
West (New York: Appleton-Century-Crofts, Inc., 1955), pp. 141-142, 145,

81144, pp. 194-195.
19LeCompte report.

2OWinston-Salem Journal, February 27, 1962.

21File W-4778, Estates Division, Clerk of Superior Court in Forsyth County,
Hall of Justice, Winston-Salem.

22Death Index, Office of the Register of Deeds, Forsyth County Hall of
Justice, Winston-Salem.

23Deed Book 1281, p. 382, Office of the Register of Deeds, Forsyth County
Hall -oF Justice, Winston-Salem.



9. Major Bibliographical References

See continuation sheet.

10. Geographical Data

less than 1

Acreage of hominated property

Quadrangle name Winston-Salem Fast Quadrangle scale _1:224 000
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Verbal boundary description and justification

The nominated property consists of Winston-Salem Tax Block 70/Lot 110, as outlined
in red on the accompanying map, and includes the house and its surrounding yard.
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List all states and counties for properﬁes overlapping state or county boundaries

state N/A code county N/A code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

Laura A. W. Phillips, Consultant

name/title

organization date 2-24-82

street & number 637 N. Spring Street telephone (919) 727-1968

city or town Winston-Salem state

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

North Carolina

___ pational ____ state _X Jjocal

As the designated State Historic Preservation Otficer for the Nationa! Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89—
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Reglster and certlfy that it has been evaluated

according to the criteria and procedures set forth y the ritage io creation Service.
State Historic Preservation Officer signature . ]
\

State Historic Preservation Officer date , .82

title

GPO 938 835
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